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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YO 

MICHAEL DAO, Individually and on Behalf 
of All Others Similarly Situated, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

RUI FENG, JIANGO "MYLES" GAO, 
MENG "MARIA" TANG, and SILVERCORP 
METALS, INC., 

Defendants. 

Case No. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff Michael Dao ("Plaintiff'), by his undersigned attorneys, for his complaint 

against defendants alleges the following based upon personal knowledge as to himself and his 

own acts, and information and belief as to all other matters. 

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This is a federal securities class action brought on behalf of a class consisting of 

all persons and entities, other than defendants and their affiliates, who purchased the publicly 

traded common stock of Silvercorp Metals, Inc., from June 24, 2010, to September 13, 2011, 

inclusive (the "Class Period"). 

2. Silvercorp is a British Columbia, Canada, corporation, whose operations are 

located principally in China, and whose shares trade on the New York Stock Exchange (the 

"NYSE") and the Toronto Stock Exchange. 

3. Throughout the Class Period, Silvercorp overstated the quality and quantity of its 

ore reserves. Silvercorp's own filings with the Chinese authorities demonstrated that it had lower 

production than represented in its filings with the SEC. 
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4. Short seller alfredlittle.com first publicized that Silvercorp had been misleading 

the investing public about the quality and quantity of its minerals production. 

5. When the truth regarding the quantity and quality of Silvercorp's minerals 

production was disclosed, Silvercorp's stock price fell, damaging investors. 

6. In response to the truthful disclosures in the alfredlittle.com report, Silvercorp 

initiated a campaign to harass persons involved with alfredlittle.com. 

7. As revealed by Canada's leading newspaper The Globe and Mail, Silvercorp's 

campaign including paying Chinese police to arrest a Canadian national in China who had 

investigated Silvercorp. Canadian citizen Huang Kun was held in China for over eight months. 

Much of that time was spent in prison. 

8. More recently, the Royal Canadian Mounted Police's Anti-Corruption Unit has 

begun an investigation to determine whether Silvercorp has criminally violated the Corruption of 

Foreign Public Officials Act. 

9. Plaintiff purchased Silvercorp stock on the NYSE and was damaged thereby. 

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

10. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of 

the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder (17 

C.F.R. § 240.1 Ob-5). 

11. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 

Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa) and 28 U.S.C. § 133l. 

12. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange 

Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa) and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) as a substantial part of the conduct complained 

of herein occurred in this District. 
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13. In connection with the acts, conduct and other wrongs alleged herein, Defendants 

either directly or indirectly used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, 

including but not limited to the United States mails, interstate telephone communications and the 

facilities of the national securities exchange. 

III. PARTIES 

14. Plaintiff as set forth in the attached Certification, purchased at artificially inflated 

prices during the Class Period and has been damaged thereby. 

15. Defendant Rui Feng ("Feng") has been Silvercorp's Chief Executive Officer and 

the Chairman of its Board of Directors since September 4, 2003. Defendant Feng is a citizen of 

Canada. 

16. Defendant Jiango "Myles" Gao ("Gao") has been President, Chief Operating 

Officer, and a Director of Silvercorp since March 2003. Defendant Gao is a citizen of Canada. 

17. Defendant Meng "Maria" Tang ("Tang") has been Silvercorp's Chief Financial 

Officer since October 1, 2008. Defendant Tang is a citizen of Canada. 

18. Collectively, Defendants Feng, Gao, and Tang are the "Individual Defendants." 

19. Defendant Silvercorp is a British Columbia, Canada, corporation whose shares are 

traded on the NYSE and the Toronto Stock Exchange. Silvercorp is an SEC reporting company. 

Silvercorp's executive offices are located in British Columbia, but substantially all of its 

operations take place in China. 

20. Silvercorp operates four silver, lead, and zinc mines in the Ying District in the 

western Henan Province of China. Silvercorp purports to be China's largest primary silver 

producer. 

3 

Case 1:13-cv-00279-UA   Document 1    Filed 01/11/13   Page 3 of 19



21. During the Class Period, Silvercorp operated its only revenue-generating 

subsidiaries through its subsidiaries Henan Found Mining. Co., Ltd., and Henan Huawei Mining 

Co., Ltd. As such, Silvercorp's revenues should be no greater than the combined revenues of 

. Henan Found and Henan Huawei. 

22. Henan Found's primary revenue-generating asset is the Ying Mine, alk/a the SGX 

mine, alk/a the Ying Project. The Ying Mine accounted for over 85% of Henan Found's silver 

production in the year ended March 31,2011, and over 96% of Henan Pound's silver production 

in the year ended March 3 1, 2010. 

IV. DEFENDANTS' MISCONDUCT 

23. On June 24, 2010, Si1vercorp filed an annual report on Form 40_pl that contained 

false and misleading statements. The 2010 40-P and its exhibits falsely claimed that during the 

year ended March 31, 2010: 

a. The Ying mine produced approximately 118.19 tonnes2 of silver; 

b. The Ying mine produced 24,732 tonnesoflead; and 

c. The Ying mine produced 6,382 tonnes of zinc. 

24. Silvercorp made these statements in the Management's Discussion and Analysis 

section of its filing and exhibit. 

25. Defendants Peng and Tang each separately represented that: 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement 
of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such 
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered 
by this report; 

1 SEC Form 40-F is a form for annual reports filed with the SEC by Canadian issuers. 
2 I . . e ., metnc tonnes. 

4 

Case 1:13-cv-00279-UA   Document 1    Filed 01/11/13   Page 4 of 19



Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,. and other financial 
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer 
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report[.] 

26. On December 7,2010, Silvercorp filed a Prospectus Supplement with the SEC to 

register 9,200,000 shares to be sold for $116,840,000, including underwriters' over-allotment 

option, in a "bought deal" (i.e., firm-commitment) offering. The Prospectus Supplement 

incorporated by reference Management's Discussion and Analysis from the June 24, 2010 40-F. 

The Prospectus Supplement was signed by Defendants Feng and Tang. 

27. The Offering closed on December 14,2010. 

28. On June 3, 2011, Silvercorp filed its annual report on Form 40-F for the year 

ended March 31,2011. 

29. The 2011 40-F and its exhibits falsely claimed that during the year ended March 

31,2011: 

that: 

40-F: 

a. The Ying mine produced 130.63 tonnes of silver; 

b. The Ying mine produced 23,995 tonnes oflead; and 

c. The Ying mine produced 6,078 tonnes of zinc. 

30. Defendants Feng and Tang each separately represented the following in the 2011 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement 
of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such 
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered 
by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the fmancial statements, and other financial 
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
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the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer 
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report[.] 

V. THE TRUTH CONCEALED BY DEFENDANTS' MISCONDUCT IS 
REVEALED, CAUSING INVESTORS' LOSSES 

31. On September 13, 2011, short-selling analyst firm alfredlittle.com issued a report 

written by Jon Carnes ("Carnes") that called into question the veracity of Silvercorp's claims 

regarding the Ying Mine. 

32. Among other concerns, the September 13 report highlighted filings made by 

Henan Found with the Henan Provincial Land & Resource Bureau, an agency of the Chinese 

government (the "Henan Provincial Bureau"). According to Mr. Carnes, Henan Found reported 

to the Henan Provincial Bureau that in the year ended December 31,2010, the Ying mine had 

actually produced: 

a. 32.17 tonnes of silver; 

b. 5,911.40 tonnes of lead; and 

c. 5,162.80 tonnes of zinc. 

33. Thus, Silvercorp's SEC filings overstated its actual production of silver by 306%, 

its production oflead by 306%, and its production of zinc by 18%. 

34. Silvercorp's stock price fell $1.54 per share or nearly 20%, to close at $6.30 per 

share on September 13, 2011. 

35. Subsequently, Silvercorp responded to Alfred Little's report. In the course of 

doing so, Silvercorp admitted that the figures obtained by Carnes from the Henan Provincial 

Bureau accurately represented the filings Silvercorp had made to the Henan Provincial Bureau. 
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VI. ADDITIONAL FACTS PROBATIVE OF SCIENTER 

36. Soon after publication of Carnes's report, Silvercorp began seeking retribution 

against Carnes and others who had truthfully revealed its financial condition. 

37. Silvercorp sued Carnes along with several others in New York State Supreme 

Court. 

38. As an adjunct to its lawsuit in New York State Supreme Court, Silvercorp used its 

influence with the local Chinese government to cause it unlawfully to detain Huang Kun, a 

Canadian citizen and one of the in-country researchers who had assisted Carnes in drafting his 

report. 

39. According to an in-depth report published on September 8, 2012, by the Globe 

and Mail, Canada's leading newspaper, Silvercorp funded the "investigation" into, and unlawful 

detention of, Mr. Huang. 

40. The Globe and Mail report highlighted that hotel receipts regarding rooms used 

by Police investigators were made payable to Henan Found -- not the Police. The report noted 

that a black Lexus 240 was used to transport Mr. Huang 150 kilometers belonged to Henan 

Found -not the Police. The report also quoted Mr. Huang as saying that in their interrogation of 

him, Police investigators received orders over the phone from sources that "had to be from" 

Silvercorp. 

41. According to Mr. Huang, the officer told him: 

You have to take responsibility for what you have done. This company is 
very powerful at the local level. They pay a lot of tax to the local 
government and Luoyang is a very poor city. They contribute a lot to the 
local economy. 
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42. According to experts consulted by the Globe and Mail, Silvercorp's conduct may 

have violated both Chinese and Canadian law. 

43. According to a later article dated September 17, 2012, the Royal Canadian 

Mounted Police is mulling whether to investigate Silvercorp's misconduct in the wake of the 

Globe and Mail report. 

44. While Defendant Rui denied involvement, his denial lacked credibility and in fact 

explicitly highlighted the dangerous influence Silvercorp had over local police: 

These [the short-sellers including Mr. Carnes and Mr. Huang] are bad 
people for me. They are my enemy. I am raped. I tell police. Right? The 
police sometimes do contact me and with us. We are victims. We are big 
taxpayers in the Luoyang County. 

[emphasis added] 

45. Indeed, according to Carnes, the local Chinese Police made documents it 

unearthed available to Silvercorp for its case against the short-sellers. 

46. In an application for letters rogatory filed in the New York State Supreme Court 

action on March 5, 2012, Silvercorp sought to compel the Royal Bank of Canada and various 

affiliates the names, account numbers, and associated contact information linked to what 

Silvercorp claimed were 44 different phone numbers. 

47. One of the numbers was Mr. Carnes's wife's Asia Air Miles number. 

48. According to Mr. Huang, the information was taken from the contacts he keeps on 

his laptop when the Police seized it. 

49. On March 19, 2012, Silvercorp inexplicably withdrew its application. 
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VII. PLAINTIFF'S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

50. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure 23 ( a) and (b )(3) on behalf of a Class consisting of all persons who purchased the 

common stock of Silvercorp during the Class Period and who were damaged thereby. Excluded 

from the Class are Defendants, the present and former officers and directors of Silvercorp and 

any subsidiary thereof, members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, 

heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which defendants have or had a controlling interest. 

51. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, Silvercorp's stock was actively traded on the NYSE. 

52. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time and 

can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believe that there are at least 

hundreds, if not thousands, of members in the proposed Class. Members of the Class may be 

identified from records maintained by Silvercorp or its transfer agent and may be notified of the 

pendency of this action by mail, using a form of notice customarily used in securities class 

actions. 

53. Plaintiffs' claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class, as all 

members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants' wrongful conduct in violation of 

federal law that is complained of herein. 

54. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the 

Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation. 

55. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the 

questions oflaw and fact common to the Class are: 
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a. whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants' acts as 

alleged herein; , 

b. whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the 

Class Period misrepresented material facts about the business, and financial performance 

of Silvercorp; and 

c. to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the 

proper measure of damages. 

56. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as 

the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and 

burden of individual litigation make it impossible for members of the Class to redress 

individually the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this 

action as a class action. 

VIII. RELIANCE PRESUMPTION 

57. At all relevant times, the market for Silvercorp common stock was an efficient 

market for the following reasons, among others: 

a. Silvercorp stock met the requirements for listing, and was listed and 

actively traded on the NYSE under ticker symbol "SVM." The NYSE is a highly efficient 

and automated market; 

b. As a regulated issuer Silvercorp filed with the SEC periodic public reports 

and was eligible to file F-3 registration statements with the SEC during the Class Period; 

c. Silvercorp regularly communicated with public investors via established 

market communication mechanisms, including regular disseminations of press releases 
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on the national circuits of major newswire services and other wide-ranging public 

disclosures, such as communications with the financial press and other similar reporting 

services; 

d. Silvercorp was followed by several securities analysts employed by major 

brokerage firms who wrote reports that were distributed to the sales force and certain 

customers of their respective brokerage firms during the Class Period; . 

e. Unexpected material news about Silvercorp was rapidly reflected in and 

incorporated into the Company's stock price during the Class Period. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

Violation of Section lO(b) of The Exchange Act Against and 
Rule lOb-5 Promulgated Thereunder Against Defendants 

Silvercorp, Feng, Gao, and Tang 

58. Plaintiff incorporates ~~1-58 as if fully set forth herein. 

59. This cause of action is asserted against all Defendants. 

60. During the Class Period, defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of 

conduct which was intended to, and throughout the Class Period, did: (1) deceive the investing 

public, including Plaintiff and other Class members, as alleged herein; and (2) cause Plaintiff and 

other members of the Class to purchase and/or sell Silvercorp's securities at artificially inflated 

and distorted prices. In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, 

defendants, individually and as a group, took the actions set forth herein. 

61. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means 

or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a 

continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about the business, 

operations and future prospects of Silvercorp as specified herein. 
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62. Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in 

possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a 

course of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Silvercorp's value and 

performance and continued substantial growth, which included the making of, or the 

participation in the making of, untrue statements of material facts and omitting to state material 

facts necessary in order to make the statements made about Silvercorp and its business 

operations and financial condition in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading, as set forth more particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a 

course of business that operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of Silvercorp 

securities during the Class Period. 

63. Each of the defendants' primary liability, and controlling person liability, arises 

from the following: (a) defendants were high-level executives, directors, and/or agents at the 

Company during the Class Period and members of the Company's management team or had 

control thereof; (b) by virtue of their responsibilities and activities as senior officers and/or 

directors of the Company, were privy to and participated in the creation, development and 

reporting of the Company's internal budgets, plans, projections and/or reports; (c) defendants 

enjoyed significant personal contact and familiarity with the other members of the Company's 

management team, internal reports and other data and information about the Company's 

finances, operations, and (d) defendants were aware of the Company's dissemination of 

information to the investing public which they knew or recklessly disregarded was materially 

false and misleading. 

64. Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of 

material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to 
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ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such 

defendants' material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and 

for the purpose and effect of concealing Silvercorp's financial condition from the investing 

public and supporting the artificially inflated price of its securities. As demonstrated by 

defendants' false and misleading statements during the Class Period, defendants, if they did not 

have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions alleged, were reckless in failing 

to obtain such knowledge by failing to take steps necessary to discover whether those statements 

were false or misleading. 

65. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information 

and failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price for Silvercorp's 

securities was artificially inflated during the Class Period. 

66. In ignorance of the fact that market prices of Silvercorp's publicly-traded 

securities were artificially inflated or distorted, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and 

misleading statements made by defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the 

Company's securities trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse information that was 
, 

known to or recklessly disregarded by defendants but not disclosed in public statements by 

defendants during the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class acquired 

Silvercorp's securities during the Class Period at artificially high prices and were damaged 

thereby. 

67. At the time of said misrepresentations and omissions, Plaintiff and other members 

of the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had Plaintiff and the 

other members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding Silvercorp's financial 

results and condition, which were not disclosed by defendants, Plaintiff and other members of 
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the Class would not have purchased or otherwise acquired Silvercorp securities, or, if they had 

acquired such securities during the Class Period, they would not have done so at the artificially 

inflated prices or distorted prices at which they did. 

68. By virtue of the foregoing, the defendants have violated Section lOeb) of the 

Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. 

69. As a direct and proximate result of the Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff 

and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective 

purchases and sales of the Company's securities during the Class Period. 

70. This action was filed within two years of discovery of the fraud and within five 

years of Plaintiff purchases of securities giving rise to the cause of action. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

Violation of Section 20(a) of The Exchange Act 
Against the Individual Defendants 

71. Plaintiff incorporates ~~1-7l as if fully set forth herein. 

72. This second cause of action is asserted against each of the Individual Defendants. 

73. The Individual Defendants acted as controlling persons of Silvercorp within the 

meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of their high-level 

positions, agency, and their ownership and contractual rights, participation in and/or awareness 

of the Company's operations and/or intimate knowledge of aspects of the Company's revenues 

and earnings and dissemination of information to the investing public, the Individual Defendants 

had the power to influence and control, and did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the 

decision-making of the Company, including the content and dissemination of the various 

statements that Plaintiff contend are false and misleading. The Individual Defendants were 
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provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the Company's reports, press releases, public 

filings and other statements alleged by Plaintiff to be misleading prior to andlor shortly after 

these statements were issued, and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or to 

cause the statements to be corrected. 

74. In particular, each of these Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in 

the day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to 

control or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged 

herein, and exercised the same. 

75. As set forth above, Silvercorp violated Section lOeb) and Rule lOb-5 by their acts 

and Silvercorp as alleged in this Complaint. 

76. By virtue of their positions as controlling persons, the Individual Defendants are 

liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as they culpably participated in the fraud 

alleged herein. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and 

other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the 

Company's common stock during the Class Period. 

77. This action was filed within two years of discovery of the fraud and within five 

years of Plaintiff purchases of securities giving rise to the cause of action. 

IX. JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for relief and judgment, as follows: 

a. Determining that this action is a proper class action and certifying Plaintiff as 

class representatives under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Plaintiff counsel 

as Class Counsel; 
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b. Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class 

members against all Defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of 

Defendants' wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; 

c. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in 

this action, including counsel fees and expert fees; 

d. Awarding Plaintiff such equitable/injunctive and further relief under Section 20A 

of the Exchange Act; and 

e. Awarding Plaintiff such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and 

proper. 

Dated: January 11,2013 

Respectfully submitted, 

POMERANTZ GROSSMAN HUFFORD 
DAHLSTROM & GROSS, LLP 

eberman 
u,...,....-£ .... venue, 20th Floor 

New York, New York 10016 
Telephone: (212) 661-1100 
Facsimile: (212) 661-8665 
migross@pomlaw.com 
jalieberrnan@pomlaw.com 

Patrick V. Dahlstrom 
POMERANTZ GROSSMAN HUFFORD 

DAHLSTROM & GROSS, LLP 
10 South La Salle Street, Suite 3505 
Chicago, Illinois 60603 
Telephone: (312) 377-1181 
Facsimile: (312) 377-1184 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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Certification of Plaintiff 
Pursuant to Federal Securities Laws 

1. I, Michael Dao, make this declaration. pursuant to Section 101 of the 
Private Securities Litigation Refonn Act of 1995 as required by Section 21D (a) 
(2) of Title I of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

2. I have reviewed a Complaint against Silvercorp Metals, Inc .. ~ ('·SVM;~), 
and authorize a filing ofa comparable complaint on my behalf. 

3. I did not purchase my SVM securities at the direction of plaintiffs' 
counselor in, order to participate in any private action arising under Title I of the' 
Securities E:&change Act of 1934. 

4. I am willing to serve as a representative party on behalf of a class as set 
forth in the Complaint; including providing testimony at deposition and trial, if 
necessary. I understand that the Court has the authority to select the most adequate 
lead plaintiff in this action. 

5. To the best of my current knowledge, the attached sheet lists all of my 
purchases and sales in SVM securities durin.g the Class Period as specified in the 
Complaint. 

6. During the tbree~year period preceding the date on which this 
certification is signed, I have not sought to serve as a representative party on behalf 
of a class under the federal securities laws, except as follows: 

7. I agree not to accept any payment for servi.ng as a representative party 
on behalf of the class as set forth in the Complaint, beyond my pro rata share of 
any recovery, except such reasonable costs and expenses (including lost wages) 
directly relating to the representation of the class as ordered or approved by the 
Court. 

8. The matters stated in this declaration are true to the best of my current 
knowledge, information and belief. 
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I declare under penalty or perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed'---__________ , at 117U1 
(Date) 

~ 
(Signatu.re) 

M; ek-~eJ f)~ 
(Type or Print N~me) 
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SILVERCORP METALS, INC. (SVM) Dao, Michael 

LIST OF PURCHASES AND SALES 

PURCHASE NUMBER OF PRICE PER 
DATE OR SALE SHS/UTS SH/UT 

05/02/2011 PUR 1,000 $12.9000 
05/03/2011 PUR 1,000 $11.9000 
05/11/2011 PUR 500 $10.7500 
06/03/2011 PUR 1,000 $10.4500 
06/10/2011 PUR 600 $8.5000 
08/09/2011 PUR 450 $7.8990 

dao 
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